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y TSP MUTUAL BENEFIT
ASSOCIATION. INC.

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,

The management of TSPI MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION, INC. (the “Association”), is responsible for
the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements including the schedules attached
therein, for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, in accordance with the prescribed financial
reporting framework indicated therein, and for such internal control as management determines is

necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Association’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Association or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to.do so.

The Board of Trustees is responsible for overseeing the Association’s financial reporting process.

The Board of Trustees reviews and approves the financial statements including the schedules attached
therein, and submits the same to the members.

%

R.G. Manabat & Co., the independent auditor appointed by the members, has audited the financial
statements of the Association in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in its report to
the members, has expres; pinion on the fairness of presentation upon completion of such audit,

Signature e

MA. LUZ ;( PLANAS - Chairman of the Board
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Signature @ M

FLORENCIAG. T IELA - Treasurer
Signature 78

EDUA Dga(. MENDOZA — President & CEQ

Signature

NEUAA, NAYVE - Director — Finance & Admin

PR 13 7017
Signed 8RR | d of April 2017

Bridging the gap between poverty and progress
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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R.G. Manabat & Co.

The KPMG Center, 9/F

6787 Ayala Avenue, Makati City
Philippines 1226

Telephone +63 (2) 885 7000

Fax +63 (2) 894 1985
Internet www.kpmg.com.ph
Email ph-inquiry@kpmg.com.ph

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Trustees and Members
TSPI Mutual Benefit Association, Inc.
3" Floor, Tulay sa Pag-unlad Inc. (TSPI) Building
2363 Antipolo St., Guadalupe Nuevo, Makati City

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of TSPI Mutual Benefit Association, Inc.

(the "Association”), which comprise the statements of assets, liabilities and fund balance
as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the statements of comprehensive income,
statements of changes in fund balance and statements of cash flows for the years then
ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Association as at December 31, 2016 and 2015,
and its financial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors'
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Association in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtainegtiaﬁsﬁfﬁcient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. *!i\ 0\
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with PFRSs, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Association’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,

matters related to going concern and using the going concemn basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Association or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Association’s
financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with PSA will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control refevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Association’s internal control.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Association’s ability to continue as a going concemn. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our a d\tors’ report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such js§losures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are bas he audit gv
obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, fu events ¢ e “
may cause the Association to cease to continue as a going concemc.';"‘\‘gaf{?‘ @O




= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations
No. 15-2010 of the Bureau of Internal Revenue

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The supplementary information in Note 22 to the financial
statements is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and is
not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole.

R.G. MANABAT & CO.

B J, e

DENNIS I. ILAN
Partner
CPA License No. 089564
IC Accreditation No. SP-2014/023-R, Group A, valid until August 26, 2017
SEC Accreditation No. 1182-AR-1, Group A, valid until April 30, 2018
Tax Identification No. 161-313-405
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001987-28-2014
Issued September 26, 2014; valid until September 25, 2017
PTR No. 5804928MD
Issued January 3, 2017 at Makati City

April 28, 2017
Makati City, Metro Manila
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TSPI MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION, @ :

(A Nonstock, Nonprofit Organizati
STATEMENTS OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND F §D

December 31
Note 2016 2015
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 7 P15,026,605 P13,876,076
Short-term investments 8 3,166,857 3,141,395
Available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets 9 761,178,427 713,700,414
Held-to-maturity (HTM) investments 10, 19 97,676,722 97,551,958
Receivables 11 7,037,006 14,032,715
Property, equipment and computer
software - net 13 4,281,852 6,212,839
Retirement asset 21 3,623,610 2,807,191
Other assets 14 2,135,085 944 547

P894,126,164 P852,267,135

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities
Claims payable 15 P4,154,358 P5,010,457
Aggregate reserves 17 13,132,536 12,412,582
Equity value reserves 18 329,894,308 316,436,514
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 16 39,860,632 36,755,291
Due to related party 12 1,068,209 -
Total Liabilities 388,110,043 370,614 844
Fund Balance
Guaranty fund reserves 19 90,136,823 82,573,455
General fund balance 20 74,122,967 67,985,334
Funds assigned for members' benefits 20 237,459,898 225,627 464
Funds assigned for capacity building 20 104,320,428 98,389,662
Employee benefit reserves 556,694 390,669
Fair value reserve on AFS financial assets 9 (623,997) 6,580,016
Fair value reserve on HTM investments to be
amortized in profit or loss 43,308 105,691
Total Fund Balance 506,016,121 481,652,291

P894,126,164 PB852,267,135

See Nofes fo the Financial Statements.




Years Ended December 31

Note 2016 2015

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or

loss
Remeasurement of employee benefit reserves 21 P166,025 (P1,813,186)
Item that may be reclassified to profit or

loss
Net change in fair value of reserve on AFS

financial assets 9 (7,204,013)  (21,300,542)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME P26,432,228 P13,203,806

See Notes to the Financial Statements.




TSPI MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION, INC.
(A Nonstock, Nonprofit Organization)

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31

Note

2016

2015

NET MEMBERS' CONTRIBUTIONS AND

PREMIUMS
Members' contributions and premiums 12
Members' contributions and premiums ceded

P151,267,356 P164,259,193

fo reinsurers (225,500) (159,778)
151,041,856 164,099,415
CLAIMS AND BENEFITS EXPENSES
Claims and benefits 15 39,286,339 43,477,339
Increase (decrease) in equity value reserves 31,735,310 33,351,182
Increase in aggregate reserves 719,954 84,287
71,741,603 76,912,808
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
EXPENSES
Salaries and other employee benefits 48,043,133 45,549,927
Marketing and sales 16,671,160 19,164,323
Depreciation and amortization 13 4,085,036 5,121,928
Planning, meetings and conferences 2,895,507 1,074,799
Office supplies 1,676,057 1,758,716
Incentives 1,290,404 2,247,092
Repairs and maintenance 1,396,528 889,149
Communication, light and water 827,625 1,061,361
Professional fees 771,981 663,918
Transportation and travel 297,938 771,770
Advertising and promotion 271,122 743,520
Dues and fees 216,716 156,778
Representation and entertainment 67,376 124,732
Donation 50,000 12,000
Taxes and licenses 10,725 101,055
Miscellaneous 705,724 701,728
79,277,031 80,142,796
OPERATING INCOME 23,222 7.043,811
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)
Interest income 7,8 8 10, 11 33,335,921 33,597,055
Dividend income 9 450,343 475,451
Gain on sale of investments 313,171 1,405,616
Other income 166,978 392,975
Interest expense 18 (808,419) _1‘(6,597.374)
33,446,99§_vl 129,273,723
NET INCOME 33,420;21 36,317,534

Farward
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TSPI MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION, INC.

(A Nonstock, Nonprofit Organization)

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

Fair Value
Fair Value  Reserve on
Reserve on Held-to-
Funds Funds Available- Maturity
Guaranty General Assigned Assigned  Employee for-Sale Investments
Fund Fund for Members' for Capacity Benefit Financial to be
Reserves Balance Benefits Building Reserves Assets Amortized in
- (Note 19) (Note 20) (Note 20) (Note 20) {Note 21) (Note 9) Profit or Loss Total
Balance as at December 31, 2015 P82,573,455 P67,985,334 P225627,464 P98,389,662 P390,669 P6,580,016 P105,691 P481,652,291
Net income for the year - 33,470,216 - - - - - 33,470,216
Other comprehensive income:
Changes in fair value reserve of
avallable-for-sale financial assets - - - - - (7,204,013) - (7,204,013)
Change in actuarial gain - - - - 166,025 - - 166,025
Total comprehensive income for the year - 33,470,216 - - 166,025 (7,204,013) - 26,432,228
Transfer {o guaranty fund 7,563,368 (7,563,368) - - - - - -
Transfer to funds assigned for members'
(beneﬁts - (13,838,449) 13,838,449 - - - - -
~Transfer o funds a@yned for capacity
[ 1 “Buijlding '\_ - - (5,930,766) - 5,930,766 - - - -
‘-\‘;.Utﬂgat_ibpj of memberszbenefits fund - - (2,006,015) - - - - (2,006,015)
Ambytization of fair valug-feserve to be
amo ed {o - - - - - - (62,383) (62,383)
ﬁ & 7,563,368 (27,332,583) 11,832,434 5,930,766 - - (62,383) (2,068,398)
P90,136,823 P74,122,967 P237,459,898 P104,320,428 P556,694 (P623,997) P43,308 P506,016,121
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Fair Value Reserve on
Reserve on Held-to-
Funds Funds Available-for- Maturity
Guaranty General Assigned  Assigned for Employee Sale Investments
Fund Fund for Members' Capacity Benefit Financial to be
Reserves Balance Benefits Building Reserves Assets  Amortized In
{Note 19) (Note 20) (Note 20) (Note 20) (Note 21) (Note 8) Profit or Loss Total
Balance as at December 31, 2014 P74,3680,486  P60,791,208 P214,938,570 PS2,116,530 P2,203,855 P27,880,558 P1,180463 P473,480,680
Net income for the year - 36,317,534 - - - - - 36,317,534
Other comprehensive income
Changes in fair value reserve of
available-for-sale financial assets - - - - - (21,300,542) - (21,300,542)
__Change in actuarial gain - - - - (1,813,186) - - (1,813,186)
Total comprehensive income for the year - 36,317,524 - - (1,813,186)  (21,300,542) - 13,203,806
Transfer to guaranty fund 8,212,859 (8,212,059) - - - - - -
Transfer to funds assigned for members’
benefits - (14,637,317) 14,637,317 - - - - -
Transfer to funds assigned for capacity
building - (6,273,132) - 6,273,132 - - - -
Utilization of members’ benefits fund - - (3,948,423) - - - - (3,948,423)
Fair value reserve to be amortized to
.~ profit or loss recognized during the year - - - - - - 704,272 704,272
“ Amortization ir value reserve {o be
L #0 amoﬂuod 1o t or loss S 3 5 = - - {1,788,044) (1,788,044)
\Ne'z ¢ y i\ 8,212,959  {29,123,408) 10,688,894 6,273,132 - - (1,083,772) (5,032,195)
\_}’Lm,as‘a; Decerriam 2015 P82,573,455 PB67,985334 P225627464 P08,389,662 P390,669 P6,580,016 P105,691 P481,652,291

A !éurhg fb&nclal Statements.



TSPI MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION, INC.
(A Nonstock, Nonprofit Organization)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31
Note 2016 2015
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Net income P33,470,216 P36,317,534
Adjustments for:
Increase in equity value reserve 31,735,310 33,351,182
Interest income earned 7,89 10, 11 (33,335,921) (33,597,055)
Interest expense incurred 18 808,419 6,597,374
Retirement expense 21 249,606 226,626
Depreciation and amortization 13 4,085,036 5,121,928
Gain on sale of investments 9 (313,171) (1,405,616)
Loss on sale of assets 4,623 723
Increase in aggregate reserves 719,954 84,287
Provision for claims incurred but not yet
reported 15 (634,081) 1,520,189
Dividend income 9 (450,343) (475,451)
Operating income before working capital
changes 36,339,648 47,741,721
Decrease (increase) in:
Receivables 1,765,084 3,627,957
Due from related party 5,197,277 2,145,824
Other assets (1,190,538) (202,122)
Increase (decrease) in:
Claims payable (222,018) (141,276)
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 3,346,889 2,000,411
Due to related party 1,068,209 -
Refund of equity value reserve (18,277,516) (11,937,836)
Cash generated from operations 28,027,035 43,234 679
Interest paid (1,049,967) (786,155)
Net cash provided by operating activities 26,977,068 42 448 524
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Interest income received 34,760,945 33,069,709
Dividend received 9 450,343 475,451
Increase in short-term investments (25,462) (25,257)
Contribution to retirement plan assets 21 (900,000) (830,000)
Acquisitions of:
Available-for-sale financial assets 9 (265,249,858) (109,123,517)
Held-to-maturity investments 10 (46,936,510)
Property, equipment and computer software 13 (2,158 672).%\\ (2,533 829)
Proceeds from: 4
Disposal of available-for-sale financial assets 9 208 );4;{939\6\
Disposal of held-to-maturity investments 10 000 XL A
Net cash used in investing activities (23 820634 : "&p@,\j@)

Forward




Years Ended December 31

Note 2016 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM A FINANCING

ACTIVITY
Utilization of members' benefit fund (P2,006,015) (P3,948,423)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,006,015) (3,948,423)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,150,529 (6,205,381)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 13,876,076 20,081,457
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT END OF YEAR 7 P15,026,605 P13,876,076

See Notes to the Financial Statements.




TSPI MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION, INC.
(A Nonstock, Nonprofit Organization)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Reporting Entity

TSPl Mutual Benefit Association, Inc. (the “Association”) was registered with the
Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission and was given license to operate as
a mutual benefit association by the Insurance Commission (IC) on May 12, 2006 and
December 22, 2006, respectively. The Association was organized primarily to extend
financial assistance to the members and immediate members of their families in the
form of death benefits, medical reimbursement, pension, loan redemption
assistance, disability benefit and other services for the benefit of the members.

On January 25, 2018, the IC renewed the Association's license as a mutual benefit
association until December 31, 2018.

As provided in Section 30 (e) of the National Intenal Revenue Code, the Association
is exempt from the payment of income tax with respect to income it receives as a
nonstock, nonprofit organization.

The Association's registered address is at 3™ Floor, Tulay sa Pag-unlad Inc. (TSPI)
Building, 2363 Antipolo St. Guadalupe Nuevo, Makati City.

2. Basis of Preparation

Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs). PFRSs are based on Intemational Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.
PFRSs which are issued by the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Council,
consist of PFRSs, Philippine Accounting Standards (PASs), and Philippine
Interpretations.

Basis of Measurement
These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except
for the following items, which are measured on another basis at each reporting date.

tems Measurement Bases
Available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets Fair value
Retirement asset Present value of the defined benefit

obligation less fair value of plan assets

Functional and Presentation Currency A

The financial statements of the Association are presented in Philippinef"&\o (Php),
which is also the Association's functional cumency. All finandl” informati
presented in Philippine peso has been rounded off to the neare' S0, exce
otherwise indicated. \

Approval for Issuance of Financial Statements

The financial statements as at and for the year ended D er
approved by the Board of Trustees (BOT) and authorized for'
and Chief Executive Officer on April 28, 2017.




Use of Judgments and Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with PFRSs requires the

management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes.
The estimates and assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgments about the carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are readily apparent from other sources. Actual resuits could differ
from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised
and in any future period affected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical
judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the financial statements are described in Note 4 to the
financial statements.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all years
presented in these financial statements.

Adoption of New or Revised Standards and Amendments to Standards

The Association has adopted the following amendments to standards starting
January 1, 2016. The adoption of these amendments to standards did not have any
significant impact on the Association’s financial statements.

* Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization
(Amendments to PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment and PAS 38, Intangible
Assets). The amendments to PAS 38 introduce a rebuttable presumption that the
use of revenue-based amortization methods for intangible assets is
inappropriate. This presumption can be overcome only when revenue and the
consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible asset are ‘highly
correlated’, or when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of revenue.

The amendments to PAS 16 explicitly state that revenue-based methods of
depreciation cannot be used for property, plant and equipment. This is because
such methods reflect factors other than the consumption of economic benefits
embodied in the asset - e.g., changes in sales volumes and prices.

* Disclosure |Initiative (Amendments to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial
Statements) addresses some concemns expressed about existing presentation
and disclosure requirements and to ensure that entities are able to use judgment
when applying PAS 1. The amendments clarify that:

* Information should not be obscured by aggregating or by providing
immatenal information.

» Materiality considerations apply to all parts of the financial statements, even
when a standard requires a specific disclosure.



» The list of line items to be presented in the statements of assets, liabilities
and fund balance and statements of comprehensive income can be
disaggregated and aggregated as relevant and additional guidance on
subtotals in these statements.

* An entity's share of other comprehensive income of equity-accounted
associates and joint ventures should be presented in aggregate as single line
items based on whether or not it will subsequently be reclassified to profit or
loss.

Standards Issued but Not Yet Adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards are effective for annual
periods beginning after January 1, 2016. However, the Association has not applied
the following new or amended standards in preparing these financial statements.
The Association is assessing the potential impact on its financial statements resulting
from the application of the new standards.

Effective January 1, 2017

Disclosure |Initiative (Amendments to PAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows).
The amendments address financial statements users’ requests for improved
disclosures about an entity's net debt relevant to understanding an entity’s cash
flows. The amendments require entities to provide disclosures that enable users
of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes
- €.g., by providing a reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in
the statement of financial position for liabilities arising from financing activities.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2017. Early adoption is permitted. When an entity first applies the
amendments, it is not required to provide comparative information for preceding
periods,

Effective January 1, 2018

PFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2014). PFRS 9 (2014) replaces PAS 39,
Financial Instruments. Recognition and Measurement, and supersedes the
previously published versions of PFRS 9 that introduced new classifications and
measurement requirements (in 2009 and 2010) and a new hedge accounting
model (in 2013). PFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and
measurement of financial assets, including a new expected credit loss model for
calculating impairment, guidance on own credit risk on financial liabilities
measured at fair value and supplements the new general hedge accounting
requirements published in 2013. PFRS 9 incorporates new hedge accounting
requirements that represent a major overhaul of hedge accounting and
introduces significant improvements by aligning the accounting more closely with
risk management.

The new standard is to be applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2018 with early adoption permitted.



* Applying PFRS 9 with PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts (Amendments to PFRS 4).
The amendments provide a temporary exemption from PFRS 9, where an entity
is permitted to defer application of PFRS 9 in 2018 and continue to apply PAS 39
if it has not applied PFRS 9 before and its activities are predominantly connected
with insurance. A qualified entity is permitted to apply the temporary exemption
for annual reporting periods beginning before January 1, 2021. The amendments
also provide an overlay approach to presentation when applying PFRS 9 where
an entity is permitted to reclassify between profit or loss and other
comprehensive income the difference between the amounts recognized in profit
or loss under PFRS 9 and those that would have been reported under PAS 39,
for designated financial assets. A financial asset is eligible for designation if it is
not held for an activity that is unconnected with contracts in the scope of PFRS 4,
and if it is measured at fair value through profit or loss under PFRS 9, but would
not have been under PAS 39. An entity is generally permitted to start applying
the overlay approach only when it first applies PFRS 8, including after previously
applying the temporary exemption.

The amendments permitting the temporary exemption is for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2018 and the amendments allowing the overlay
approach are applicable when an entity first applies PFRS 9.

The standards was adopted by the FRSC on October 12, 2016 but currently
subject to approval by the Board of Accountancy.

Classification of Insurance and Investment Contracts

The Association issues contracts that transfer insurance or financial risk or both.
Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer significant insurance risk.
Such risk includes the possibility of having to pay benefits on the occurrence of an
insured event such as death, accident or disability. The Association may also
transfer insurance risk in insurance contracts through its reinsurance arrangement to
hedge a greater possibility of claims occurring than expected. Such contracts may
also transfer financial risk. As a general guideline, the Association defines significant
insurance risk as the possibility of having to pay benefits on the occurrence of an
insured event that is more than the benefits payable if the insured event did not
occur. nvestment contracts are those contracts that transfer financial risk with no
significant insurance risk.

Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains as an
insurance contract for the remainder of its life, even if the insurance risk reduces
significantly during the period, unless all rights and obligations are extinguished or
expired. Investment contracts can, however, be reclassified as insurance contracts
after inception if the insurance risk becomes significant.

Insurance Contracts
The Association issues membership certificates, governing rules and regulations,
and application forms that transfer insurance risk.

Conventional Annual Insurance Contracts

These contracts insure events associated with human life (death or survival) over an
annual duration. Members’ contributions and premiums are recognized as revenue
when paid by the certificate holder. Benefits are recognized as an expense when
they are incurred.



A liability for contractual benefits that is expected to be incurred in the future is
recognized for policies that are in-force as at the reporting dates. The proportion of
written members' contribution and premium attributable to subsequent periods or to
risks that have not yet expired is deferred as “Aggregate reserves” in the statements
of assets, liabilittes and fund balance. The change in the provision for unearned
members' contribution and premium is taken to profit or loss in the order that
revenue is recognized over the period of risk. When the anticipated losses, loss
adjustment expenses, incentives and other acquisition costs, and maintenance costs
exceed the recorded aggregate reserves, and any future installment members'
contributions and premiums on existing policies, a deficiency reserve shall be
recognized by recording an additional liability for the deficiency, with a corresponding
charge to profit or loss.

Liability Adequacy Tests

At each reporting date, liability adequacy tests are performed for policies with
coverage that extend to beyond one year to ensure the adequacy of the contract
liabilities. In performing these tests, current best estimates of future contractual cash
flows and claims handling and administration expenses, as well as investment
income from assets backing such liabilities, are used. Any deficiency is immediately
recognized in profit or loss.

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Association does not have any policies with
coverage of more than one year.

Reinsurance Contracts Held

Contracts entered into by the Association with reinsurer which compensates the
Association for losses on one or more contracts issued by the Association and that
meet the classification requirements for insurance contracts are classified as
reinsurance contracts held. Contracts that do not meet these classification
requirements are classified as financial assets.

The benefits recoverable to which the Association is entitied under its reinsurance
contracts held are recognized as reinsurance assets. These assets consist of
amounts due from reinsurers classified within insurance receivables. Reinsurance
liabilities are primarily members’ contributions and premiums payable for reinsurance
contracts and are recognized as expense when due. Amounts recoverable from or
due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the amounts associated with the
reinsured insurance contracts and in accordance with terms of each reinsurance
contract.

The Association assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment at least annually.
If there is objective evidence that the reinsurance asset is impaired, the Association
reduces the carrying amount of the reinsurance assets to its recoverable amount and
recognizes that impairment loss in profit or loss. The Association gathers the
objective evidence that a reinsurance asset is impaired using the same process for
financial assets.

Financial Instruments

Date of Recognition

Financial instruments are recognized in the statements of assets, liabilities and fund
balance when the Association becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace are
recognized on the trade date. The trade date is the date that an entity commits itself
to purchase or sell an asset.



Initial Recognition

Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value of the consideration given
(in case of an asset) or received (in case of a liability). Except for financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), the initial measurement of
financial instruments includes transaction costs. The Association classifies its
financial assets into the following categories: financial assets at FVPL, available for
sale (AFS) financial assets, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, and loans and
receivables. The Association classifies its financial liabilities either as financial
liabilities at FVPL or other financial liabilities.

The classification depends on the purpose for which the instruments were acquired
or incurred and whether these are quoted in an active market. Management
determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition and,
where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates such designation at every reporting
date.

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Association has no financial assets and
liabilities at FVPL.

HTM Investments. HTM investments are quoted non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities for which management has the
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Where the Association sells or
reclassifies other than an insignificant amount of HTM investments, the entire
category would be tainted and reclassified at fair value as AFS financial assets.
After initial measurement, these investments are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any allowance for
impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate
(EIR). The amortization, if any, is included as part of “Interest income" in profit or
loss.

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Association's HTM investments amounted
to P97.68 million and P97.55 million, respectively (see Note 10).

Loans and Receivables. Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that are not quoted in an
active market. These are not entered into with the intention of immediate or
short-term resale and are not held for trading.

After initial measurement, the loans and receivables are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment loss.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees that are an integral part of the EIR. The amortization, if any,
is included as part of “Interest income” in profit or loss.

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Association's cash and cash equivalents,
short-term investments, receivables and cash held by investment manager/custodian
under “Other assets” are classified under this category.

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original
maturities of three months or less and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value.



AFS Financial Assets. AFS financial assets are financial assets which are
designated as such, or do not qualify to be classified or have not been classified
under any other financial asset category. They are purchased and held indefinitely

and may be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes in market
conditions.

After initial measurement, AFS financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value. Changes in fair value, other than impairment loss and foreign currency
differences on AFS equity securities, are recognized in other comprehensive income
as “Fair value reserve on AFS financial assets" and are presented within equity.
The losses arising from the impairment of such securities are recognized in profit or
loss. When the security is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in other comprehensive income is transferred to profit or loss.
The effective yield component of AFS debt securities is reported in profit or loss.

When the fair value of AFS financial assets cannot be measured reliably because of
lack of reliable estimates of unobserved inputs such as in the case of unguoted
equity instruments, these financial assets are allowed to be carried at cost less
impairment, if any.

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Association’s AFS financial assets
amounted to P761.18 million and P713.70 million, respectively (see Note 9).

Other Financial Liabilities. |ssued financial instruments or their component, which are
not classified as at FVPL are classified as other financial liabilities where the
substance of the contractual arrangement results in the Association having an
obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder or lender.

After Initial measurement, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Amortized cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on the issue and fees that are an
integral part of the EIR. The amortization is included as part of “Interest expense” in
profit or loss,

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, this category includes the Association’s claims
payable, claims payable - equity value and interest, equity value reserves, accrued
expenses and other liabilities and due to related party excluding amounts payable to
government agencies.

‘Day 1' Difference

Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value
from other observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based
on a valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable market,
the Association recognizes the difference between the transaction price and fair
value (a 'Day 1' Difference) in profit or loss unless it qualifies for recognition as some
other type of asset. In cases where an observable data is used, the difference
between the transaction price and model value is only recognized in profit or loss
when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized.
For each fransaction, the Association determines the appropriate method of
recognizing the 'Day 1' Difference amount.



Fair Value Measurement

A number of the Association’s accounting policies and disclosures require the
measurement of fair value for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions (j.e. an exit price), regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Where applicable, the Association uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of unobservable inputs.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Association uses market
observable data as far as possible. Fair value is categorized in different levels in a
fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation technique (see Note 6).

Impairment of Financial Assets
The Association assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired.

A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
have occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that the borrower or a group of
borrowers is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinguency in
interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganization and where observable data indicate that there is measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

AFS Financial Assets Carried at Fair Value. In case of equity securities classified as
AFS financial assets, impairment indicators would include a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the investments below cost. Where there is objective
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss in equity, measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognized, is recorded in profit or loss. Subsequent increase in the fair

value of an impaired AFS equity security is recognized in other comprehensive
income.

Financial Assets at Amortized Cost. The Association first assesses whether objective
evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant.
If the Association determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
individually assessed accounts, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a
group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and
for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are not included in
the collective assessment for impairment. For the purpose of a collective evaluation
of impairment, loans and receivables are grouped on the basis of credit risk
characteristics such as type of borrower, payment status and term.



If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount
of the loss is measured as the excess of loan's carrying amount over its net
realizable value, based on the present value of the estimated future cash flows from
the asset. The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
loan’s original EIR. Time value is generally not considered when the effect of
discounting is not material. The carrying amount of an impaired loan is reduced to its
net realizable value through the use of an allowance account and the accrual of
interest is discontinued. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the allowance for
impairment loss decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed to profit or
loss to the extent that the resulting carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its
amortized cost had no impairment loss been recognized.

The Association performs a regular review of the age and status of these accounts,
designed to identify accounts with objective evidence of impairment and provide the
appropriate allowance for impairment loss. The Association writes off its
long-outstanding receivable accounts from deceased, unlocated, or migrated
debtors, where they have exhausted all efforts to collect.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in
the statements of assets, liabilities and fund balance if, and only if, there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to seftle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. This is generally not the case with master netting agreements, thus,
the related assets and liabilities are presented on a gross basis in the statements of
assets, liabilities and fund balance. Income and expenses are presented on a net
basis only when permitted under PFRSs, such as in the case of any realized gains or
losses arising from the Association’s trading activities.

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial Asset
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of
similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

= theright to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

» the Association retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has
assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; or

* the Association has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset and
either: (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset:
or (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Association has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset
or has entered into a ‘pass-through' arrangement, and has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor is transferred control
of the asset, the asset recognized to the extent of the Association’s continuing
involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of
the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Association could be
required to pay.



Financial Liability

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is
discharged, cancelled or has expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss.

Pro and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
amortization, and impairment loss, if any.

The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price, including
import duties, taxes, any directly attributable costs in bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use, and the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located, The cost of
replacing part of an item of property and equipment is recognized in the carrying
value of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within
the part will flow to the Association and its cost can be measured reliably.

The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property and equipment are recognized as
expense in the period in which they are incurred. Depreciation and amortization is
recognized in profit or loss on a straightine basis over the estimated useful lives of
the assets.

The estimated useful lives of property and equipment are as follows:

Number of Years
Office furniture and fixtures 5
Transportation and equipment 5
Office equipment 3-5
Building and improvements 5

The estimated useful lives, depreciation method, and residual values are reviewed
periodically and adjusted, if appropriate, to ensure that the period and method of
depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from
items of property and equipment. Changes in the estimated useful lives,
depreciation method, and residual values of property and equipment are accounted
for by changing the depreciation method, as appropriate, and treated as changes in
accounting estimates.

When an asset is disposed of, or is permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal, the cost and the related
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any, are removed from the
accounts and any resulting gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal is
recognized in profit or loss.

Computer Software

Computer software is initially measured at cost which is comprised of costs incurred
to acquire the computer software (not an integral part of its related hardware) and
bring it to its intended use. All other costs of developing and maintaining computer
software are recognized as expense when incurred.

Subsequently, computer software is measured at cost less amortization and
impairment, if any. Amortization is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful life of the computer software, from the date that they are
available for use, not to exceed three (3) years.
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Gains or losses arising from the derecognition of the computer software are
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment of Non-financial Assets

At each reporting date, the Association assesses whether there is any indication that
its non-financial assets such as property, equipment and computer software may be
impaired. When an indicator of impairment exists, the Association estimates the
recoverable amount of the impaired assets. The recoverable amount is the higher of
the fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Fair value less costs of
disposal is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm's length
fransaction between knowledgeable and willing parties less costs of disposal while
value in use is the present value of future cash flows expected to be derived from an
asset.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset,

Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount,
the impaired asset is written down to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognized in profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication
that previously recognized impairment loss may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.

A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to its recoverable amount. The reversal can be made only to the extent
that the resulting carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, had no impairment loss
been recognized. Such reversal is recognized in profit or loss. After such a reversal,
the depreciation and amortization is adjusted in future years to allocate the asset's
revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its
remaining life.

Employee Benefits
Retirement Benefits

The Association’s net obligation in respect of the defined benefit plan is calculated by
estimating the amount of the future benefit that employees have eamed in the
current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any
plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed on a periodic basis by a
qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results
in a potential asset for the Association, the recognized asset is limited to the present
value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan
or reductions in future contributions to the plan.

=



Remeasurements of the retirement asset, which comprise actuarial gains and losses,
the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling
(if any, excluding interest), are recognized immediately in other comprehensive
income. The Association determines the net interest expense (income) on the
retirement asset for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the
defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the retirement
asset, taking into account any changes in the retirement asset during the period as a
result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other
expenses related to the defined benefit plan are recognized in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting
change in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is
recognized immediately in profit or loss.

The Association recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit
plan when the settlement occurs.

Short-term Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided.
A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the Association has a
present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably,

Insurance Contract Liabilities

Aggregate Reserves

Aggregate reserves represent the accumulated total liability for policies in-force as at
the reporting dates. Such reserves are established at amount adequate to meet the
estimated future obligations to all members with in-force policy. The reserves are
calculated using the actuarial methods and assumptions in accordance with statutory
requirements and as approved by the IC.

Equity Value Reserves

Equity value reserves represent the accumulated reserve for remittance to members.
In accordance with Section 409 of the Insurance Code, as Amended (the “Insurance
Code"), equity value reserves are established at fifty percent (50%) of the total
mandatory membership contributions collected from every outstanding membership
certificates.

Effective December 1, 2014, the twenty percent (20%) surrender charge was no
longer imposed on equity value for certificates paid for less than three (3) continuous
years. Upon death or withdrawal of the member, equity value reserves contributed
and interest thereon are refunded to its members. Effective February 1, 20186,
interest rate on equity value reserve was reduced from 2.00% to 0.50% as approved
by the BOT.

Fund Balance

Guaranty Fund Reserves

Guaranty fund reserves represent required fund amounting to P5.00 million,
and every year thereafter increased by an amount equivalent to five percent (5%) of
gross members’ contribution and premium collections until its amount has reached
twenty-five percent (25%) of the required networth for existing domestic life
insurance companies.

General Fund Balance

General fund balance account represents the free and unassigned surplus of the
Association.

A



Funds Assigned for Members' Benefits

The account pertains to the amount appropriated for members' benefits such as
community development, transformation and microenterprise projects.

Funds Assigned for Capacity Building
The account pertains to the amount appropriated for capacity building such as
training of members and employees and investment in new systems.

Employee Benefit Reserves

Employee benefit reserves pertain to the accumulated actuarial gains and losses
from the remeasurement of the net pension liability.

Fair Value Reserve on AFS Financial Assets
Fair value reserve on AFS financial assets pertain to the cumulative amount of gains
and losses due to the revaluation of AFS financial assets.

Fair Value Reserve on HTM Investments

Fair value reserve on HTM investments pertain to the change in fair value of the
investments reclassified from AFS to HTM at date of reclassification. This reserve is
amortized to profit or loss with the unamortized premium or discount of the
reclassified investments through the effective interest method.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will

fiow to the Association and the revenue can be measured reliably. The following
specific recognition criteria must be met before revenue is recognized:

Members' Contributions and Premiums

Members' contributions and premiums are the insurance premium income and are
recognized when received. Premiums include weekly cash collection of one peso for
every one thousand pesos of the loan availed for credit life cover while the annual
members' contribution of two hundred forty pesos is for life insurance cover.

Members' contributions ceded to reinsurers and premiums ceded to reinsurers are
recognized as expense when the policy becomes effective.

Interest Income

Interest income for all interest-bearing financial instruments is recognized in profit or
loss using effective interest method.

Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognized when the shareholder's right to receive payment is
established.

Other Income
Other income arises mainly from surcharge fees due to the early termination of the
policy and recovery of marketing and selling expenses for Microhealth products.

Determining whether the Association is Acting as Principal or an Agent
The Association assesses its revenue arrangements against the following criteria to
determine whether it is acting as a principal or an agent:

* whether the Association has primary responsibility for providing the services;

whether the Association has discretion in establishing prices; and
= whether the Association bears the credit risk.
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If the Association has determined it is acting as a principal, the Association
recognizes revenue on gross basis with the amount remitted to the other party being
accounted as part of cost and expenses. If the Association has determined it is
acting as an agent, only the net amount retained is recognized as revenue.

The Association has determined that it is acting as principal in its revenue
arrangements.

Claims, Benefits, and Expenses Recognition
Claims and Benefits

Claims consist of benefits and claims paid and unpaid to members, denied and
resisted claims and incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims. Provision for IBNR is
made for the cost of claims incurred as of each reporting date but not reported until
after the reporting date based on the Association's experience and historical data.
Differences between the provision for outstanding claims at the reporting date and
subsequent revisions and sefttlements are included in profit or loss of subsequent

years. Death claims and surrenders are recorded on the basis of notifications
received,

General and Administrative Expenses

Expenses are recognized when the decrease in future economic benefits related to a
decrease in an asset or increase of a liability has arisen that can be measured
reliably. Expenses are recognized when incurred.

Interest Expense

Interest expense on accumulated equity value reserves of active members are
recognized in the profit or loss when it accrues.

Provisions and Contingencies
Provisions are recognized when the Association has a present legal or constructive

cbligation as a result of a past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. These are
disclosed in notes to the financial statements unless the probability of an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not
recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed in notes to the financial
statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Related Party Transactions

Related party relationships exist when one (1) party has the ability to control, directly,
or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.
Such relationship also exists between andlor among entities which are under
common control with the reporting enterprise, or between and/or among the
enterprise and its key management personnel, trustees, or its members.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the
substance of the relationship, and not merely the legal form.

Events After the Reporting Date

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Association's
assets, liabilites and fund balance at the reporting date (adjusting events) are
refiected in the financial statements. Post year-end events that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when material.
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4. Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates

The Association makes judgment and key estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical
judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the
amount recognized in the financial statements are as follows:

Judgments

(a) Classification of Financial Instruments
The Association exercises judgment in classifying a financial instrument, or its
component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, financial liability or an
equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangement and the definitions of a financial asset or liability. The substance of
a financial instrument, rather than its legal form, govems its classification in the
statements of assets, liabilities and fund balance. In addition, the Association
classifies assets by evaluating among others, whether the asset is quoted or not
in an active market. Included in the evaluation on whether a financial asset is
quoted in an active market is the determination on whether the quoted prices are
readily and regularly available and whether those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market ftransactions on an arm's length basis.
As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Association’s financial instruments are
classified as HTM investments, loans and receivables, AFS financial assets and
other financial liabilities.

(b) Impairment of Financial Assels

Financial Assets at Fair Value

The Association considers that investments are impaired when there has been
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below their cost
The determination of what is significant or prolonged decline requires judgment.
In making this judgment, the Association evaluates among other factors,
the normal volatility in share/market price. In addition, impairment may be
appropriate when there is evidence of deterioration in the financial health of the
investee, industry and sector performance, changes in technology, and
operational and financing cash flows.

Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

The Association determines that invesiments carried at amortized cost are
impaired when there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (“loss event”)
and which has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset. The Association makes judgments as to whether there is objective
evidence of impairment which may include assessment of data indicating the
lender or issuer's financial difficulties, and consideration of national or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults on the asset.
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Receivables

The Association reviews its receivables to assess impairment at least on an
annual basis, or as the need arises due to significant movements on certain
accounts. Receivables that are individually significant are assessed to determine
whether objective evidence of impairment exists on an individual basis, while
those that are not individually significant are assessed for objective evidence of
impairment either on an individual or on collective basis. In determining whether
an impairment loss should be recorded in the profit or loss, the Association
makes judgment as to whether there are any observable data indicating that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a
portfolio of receivables before the decrease can be identified with an individual
receivable in that portfolio.

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Association has not recognized any
impairment loss on its financial assets.

Estimates

(@)

(b)

Estimating Allowance for Impairment Loss on Receivables

If there is an objective evidence that an impairment loss on receivables has been
incurred, the amount of loss is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses) discounted at the financial asset's original EIR (i.e., the EIR
computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset shall be
reduced either directly or through use of an allowance account. The amount of
loss shall be recognized in profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed.
Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss,
to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortized
cost at the reversal date.

No impairment loss on financial assets carried at amortized cost was recognized
in 2016 and 2015.

Fair Value Estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on
quoted market prices or quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities at the
reporting date. If the financial instrument is not traded in an active market, the fair
value is determined using valuation techniques. Where valuation techniques are
used to determine fair values, they are validated and periodically reviewed by
management. All models are certified before they are used, and models are
calibrated to ensure that outputs reflect actual data and comparative market
prices. To the extent practical, models use only observable data, however areas
such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), volatilities and correlations
require management to make estimates. Changes in assumptions about these
factors could affect reported fair values of financial instruments.

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Association's financial instruments

carried at fair value are classified as Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy
(see Note 6).
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(©

(d)

(e)

®

Estimated Useful Lives of Property, Equipment and Computer Software

The Association estimates useful lives of property, equipment and computer
software based on the period over which the assets are expected to be available
for use and are updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to
physical wear and tear, technical and commercial obsolescence. The useful
lives, and depreciation and amortization methods are reviewed pericdically to
ensure that the method and periods of depreciation and amortization are
consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of property
and equipment, and computer software.

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the carrying amounts of property and
equipment and computer software amounted to P4.28 million and P6.21 million,
respectively (see Note 13).

Liability Arising from Claims made under Insurance Contracts

The ultimate liability arising from claims made under insurance contracts is the
Association’s most critical accounting estimate. There are several sources of
uncertainty that need to be considered in the estimation of the liability that the
Association will ultimately pay for such claims. The major sources of
uncertainties are the frequency of claims due to contingencies covered and the
timing of benefit payments.

Claims estimation by the Association considers many factors such as industry
average mortality or morbidity experience, with adjustments to reflect the
Association’s historical experience. These liabilities form part of the Association’s
IBNR which amounted to P3.39 million and P4.02 million as at December 31,
2016 and 2015, respectively (see Note 15).

Estimating Aggregale Reserves

The Association estimates the aggregate reserves for future contractual
obligations for contributions paid by determining the forty percent (40%) of the
unexpired portion of the mandatory premiums collected each month on per
quarter, semi-annual and annual basis. For loan availment premium, eighty
percent (80%) of the unexpired portion is set-up. The assumption is based on a
number of factors determined by an actuary including the unearned premium
factor.

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, aggregate reserves amounted to
P13.13 million and P12.41 million, respectively (see Note 17).

Relirement and Other Employee Benefits

The determination of the obligation and cost of retirement benefits is dependent
on the selection of certain assumptions used by the actuary in calculating such
amounts. Those assumptions include, among others, discount rates, expected
returns on plan assets and salary increase rates.

While the Association believes that the assumptions are reasonable and
appropriate, significant differences between actual experience and assumptions
may materially affect the cost of employee benefits and related obligations,

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Association has a retirement asset of
P3.62 million and P2.81 million, respectively (see Note 21).

Retirement expense amounted to P0.25 million in 2016 and P0.23 million in 2015

while employee benefit reserves amounted to P0.56 million and P0.39 million as
at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively (see Note 21),
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5. Management of Insurance and Financial Risks

The Association's activities expose it to a variety of risks such as financial and
insurance risks. The overall objective of risk management is to focus on the
unpredictability of financial and insurance contingencies to minimize potential
adverse effects on the financial condition of the Association.

Governance
The BOT of the Association has overall responsibility for the establishment and

oversight of the Association's risk management framework. The BOT has delegated
to the management the responsibility of developing and monitoring the Association’s
risk management policies.

The Association’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze
the risks faced by the Association, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to
monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are
reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Association's
activities. The Association, through its training and management standards and
procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment, in
which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

Management is responsible for monitoring compliance with the risk management
policies and procedures, and for reviewing the adequacy of the risk management
framework in relation to the risks faced by the Association.

Requlatory Framework

Regulators are interested in protecting the rights of the members and maintain close
observation to ensure that the Association is satisfactorily managing its affairs for the
benefit of members. At the same time, the regulators are also interested in ensuring
that the Association maintains appropriate solvency position to meet liabilities arising
from claims and that the risks are at acceptable levels.

Capital Management

The Association’s objective in managing fund balance is to maintain high growth by
applying free cash flow to selective investments that would preclude the
Association's need of additional financing. The Association sets strategies with the
objective of establishing a versatile and resourceful financial management and fund
balance structure. Management has overall responsibility for monitoring of fund
balance in proportion to risk. Profiles for ratios are set in the light of changes in the
Association’s external environment and the risks underlying the Association's
business operations and industry.

The Association’s capital includes guaranty fund reserves, general fund balance,
funds assigned for members' benefits and for capacity building.

The Association monitors fund balance on the basis of the debt-to-equity ratio which
is calculated as total debt divided by total fund balance. Total debt is equivalent to
claims payable, claims payable - equity value and interest, accrued expenses and
other liabilities, due to related party, aggregate reserves and equity value reserves.
Total equity comprises the fund balance.
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Debt-to-equity ratio as at December 31 is as follows:

2016 2015
Total debt P388,110,043 P370,614,844
Total equity 506,040,116 474,575,915
Debt-to-equity ratio 76.70% 78.09%

There were no changes in the Association's approach to fund balance management
during the year,

The Association is subject to imposed capital requirements set by IC. Compliance
with these requirements is discussed below.

Networth Requirement

Under the Insurance Code, mutual benefit associations must have available total
member's equity in an amount to be determined by the IC above all liabilities for
losses reported as networth requirement.

The final amount of the networth requirement can be determined only after the
accounts of the Association have been examined by the IC, specifically as to
admitted and non-admitted assets as defined in the Insurance Code.

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Association is compliant with the required
networth requirement based on its internal computations.

The estimated amounts of non-admitted assets as defined in the Insurance Code
included in the Association's statements of assets, liabilities and fund balance, which
are subject to final determination by the IC are as follows:

2016 2015
Property, equipment and computer software - net P1,353,037 P1,821,445
Receivables 780,433 1,733,650
Other assets 2,135,085 944 547

P4,268,555 P4,499,642

Risk-Based Capital (RBC) Requirements

As per IC's Memorandum Circular (IMC) No. 6-2006, every mutual benefit entity is
annually required to maintain an RBC ratio of at least one hundred percent (100%)
and not to fail the trend test. RBC ratio is computed using the formula prescribed by
the IC. The RBC requirement is determined after considering the admitted value of
certain financial statement accounts whose final amounts can be determined only
after the examination by the IC.

Failure to meet the minimum RBC ratio shall subject the Association to regulatory
intervention which could be at various levels depending on the degree of the
violation,

The following table shows how the RBC ratio at December 31, 2016 and 2015 were
determined by the Association based on its internal calculations:

2016 2015
Networth P498,123,958 P474,345458
Risk-based capital requirement 11,717,956 11,444,049
Risk-based capital ratio 4.251% 4,145%
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As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Association is compliant with the required
RBC ratio based on the Association's internal calculation.

On December 28, 2016, the Insurance Commission released Circular Letter
No. 2016-69 which provides, among other things, that the level of sufficiency for the
Amended Risk-Based Capital (RBC 2) Framework shall be at 95™ percentile level of
sufficiency for the year 2017, 97.5™ percentile for the year 2018, and 99.5% percentile
for the year 2019. RBC 2 Framework shall be made effective January 1, 2017.

Insurance Risk

The risk under any insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs
and the uncertainty of the amount of the resulting claim. The principal risk that the
Association faces under its insurance contracts are that the actual claims and benefit
payments exceed the carrying value of the insurance liabilities, which was the
estimates, established using certain assumptions.

The table below sets out the concentration of life insurance contract by type of
contract as at December 31, 2016 and 2015.

2016 2015
Gross of Net of Gross of Net of
Reinsurance Reinsurance Reinsurance Reinsurance
Loan availment benefits P87,796,736 P87,667,551 P97,556,828 P97,463,670
Mandatory benefits 63,470,620 63,374,305 66,702,365 66,635,745

P151,267,356  P151,041,856 P164,259,1¢3 P164,090,415

The Association's exposure to insurance risk as at December 31, 2016 and 2015 are
as follows:

Note 2016 2015
Aggregate reserves 17 P13,132,536 P12,412,582
Equity value reserves 18 329,894,308 316,436,514

P343,026,844 P328,849,096

Key Assumptions

The principal assumption underlying the estimates is the Association's past claims
development experience. This includes assumptions in respect of average claim
costs and claim numbers for each year. Additional qualitative judgments are used to
assess the extent to which past trends may not apply in the future. For example, one
off occurrence, changes in market factors such as public attitude to claiming,
economic conditions, as well as internal factors such as portfolio mix, policy
conditions and claims handling procedures. Judgment is further used to assess the
extent to which external factors such as judicial decisions and government legislation
affect the estimates.

Sensitivity Analysis for Insurance Risk

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, it is estimated that a general increase of one
percent (1%) in aggregate and equity value reserves, with all other variables held
constant, would decrease the Association's net income and equity by approximately
P3.43 million and P3.29 million, respectively. An equal change in the opposite
direction would have increased net income and equity by an equal but opposite
amount,
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Financial Risks

The Association has significant exposure to the following financial risks and from its
use of financial instruments:

* Credit Risk
» Liquidity Risk
=  Market Risk

There has been no change to the Association’s exposure to financial risks (i.e. credit
risk, liquidity risk and market risk) or the manner in which it manages and measures
the risks since prior financial year.

(a) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Association if the counterparty to a
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises primarily
from the Association's financial assets.

Except for HTM investments which mature on various dates, all of the
Association's financial assets are current. Thus, the credit risk relating to these
financial assets are considered small due to the short settlement period involved.
The Association’s HTM investments consist primarily of government securities.
Since these are backed by the full faith and credit of the Philippine Government,
these are generally considered to be free of credit risk.

The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit
exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting dates are as
follows:

Note 2016 2015
Cash in bank and cash equivalents 7 P14,996,456 P12,877,967
Short-term investments 8 3,166,857 3,141,395
AFS financial assets 9 738,460,769 691,951,622
HTM investments 10 97,676,722 97.551,958
Receivables 11 7,037,006 14,032,715

Other assets (excluding prepaid
expenses and fidelity bond
deposit) 14 123,067 80,215

P861,460,877 P819,635872

The Association’s concentration of credit risk arises from its investments in
government securities since the said investments amounted to P478.36 million
and P493.80 million of its total assets as at December 31, 2016 and 2015,
respectively (see Notes 9 and 10).
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The table below provides information regarding the credit risk exposure of the
Association as at December 31, 2016 and 2015 by classifying assets according
to the Association's credit grading of counterparties.

2016
Neither Past Due nor Impalred
Non- Total Financial
Investment Asscts Nelther

Investment Grade - Past Due nor  Past Due and
High-grade  Satisfactory Impaired Impaired Total
Cash in bank and cash
equivelents P14,996, 456 P - P14,9396 456 P - P14,996,456
Short-term Investments 3,166,857 - 3,166,857 - 3,166,857
AFS finandial assets 738,460,769 - 738,450,769 - 738,460,769
HTM Investments 97,676,722 - 97,676,722 - 97,676,722
Recaivabies - 7,037,008 7,037,008 - 7,037,008
Other assets {exciuding
prepaid expenses and
fidelity bond deposit) - 123,067 123,067 - 123,087
P854,300,804 P7,160,073 P861,450,877 P - P861,460,877
R 2015
Nelther Past Due nor Impaired
Non- Total Financial
nvestment Assets Nelther
investment Grade - Past Due nor  Past Due and
___High-grade Satisfactory Impaires impairad Total
Cash in bank and cash
equivaients P12, 877,987 P - P12,877 857 P - P12.877 667
Sheet-term investments 3,141,205 - 3,141,395 - 3,141,395
AFS financial assats 891,951 622 - 691,951,622 - 691,951,622
HTM Investments 97,551,058 - 97,551 658 - 97,651,853
Recalvables - 14,032,715 14,032,715 - 14,032,715
Other assets (excluding
prepaid expenses and
fidelity bond deposi) - 80215 80,215 - 80,215
PB05,522.842 P14,112,830 P818,635,6872 P - P816,635 872

The Association has no past due and impaired financial assets as at
December 31, 2016 and 2015.

The Association uses a credit grading system based on the borrowers and
counterparties overall credit worthiness, as described below:

Investment High - Grade - This pertains to accounts with a very low probability of
default as demonstrated by the borrowers strong financial position and
reputation. The borrower has the ability to raise substantial amounts of funds
through credit facilities with financial institutions. The borrower has a strong debt
service record and a moderate use of leverage.

Non-investment Grade - Satisfactory - This pertains to current accounts with no
history of default or which may have defaulted in the past, but the conditions and
circumstances directly affecting the borrower’s ability to pay has abated already.
The borrower is expected to be able to adjust to the cyclical downturns in its
operations, Any prolonged adverse economic conditions would however
ostensibly create profitability and liquidity issues. The use of leverage may be
above industry or credit standards but remains stable.

Past Due and Impaired - This pertains to the allowance for impairment loss that
the Association recognizes due to the uncertainty of the collectability of the
Association's receivables.
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(b) Liquidity Risk

(c)

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Association will not be able to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due. The Association's approach in managing liquidity is'
to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Association's reputation.

The Association prepares weekly cash position report and weekly check
disbursement forecast, which assists in monitoring cash flow requirements.
Typically, the Association ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet
expected operational expenses for a period of 80 days, including servicing of
financial obligations; this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances
that cannot be predicted.

The maturity profile of the Association's financial liabilities have contractual
maturities of one year or less as at December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as foliows:

2016
Carrying Contractual
Note Amount Cash Flow
Claims payable 15 P4,154,358 P4,154,358
Equity value reserves 18 329,894,308 329,894,308
Accrued expenses and other liabilites 16 36,054,669 36,054,669
Due to related party 12 1,068,209 1,068,209

P371,171,644 P371,171,544

"Accrued expenses and other labilities shown above exclude payables to regulatory agencies amounting fo
3,81 mifticn.

2015
Carrying Contractual
Note Amount Cash Flow
Claims payable 15 P5,010,457 P5,010,457
Equity value reserves 18 316,436,514 316,436,514

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 16 34,633,706 34,633,706
Due to related party 12 -

P356,080,677 P356,080,677

*Accrued expenses and other abiliies shown above exclude payables to ragulatory agencies amaunting fo
F2.12 million,

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that causes changes in market prices, such as interest rate
and equity price risks. This will affect the Association’s income or the value of its
holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to
manage and control market exposures within acceptable parameters, while
optimizing the return. The Association's exposure to currency risk was assessed
by management to be insignificant.

Interest Rate Risk
There are two types of interest rate risk:

* Fair Value Interest Rate Risk - the risk that the value of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates; and

= Cash Flow Interest Rate Risk - the risk that future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
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Significant portion of the Association’s investments is composed of interest-bearing
debt instruments carried at fair value. As a result, the Association is exposed to fair
value interest rate risk. The Association’s interest-bearing financial instruments as at
December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

Note 2016 2015
Cash in bank and cash equivalents 7 P14,996456 P12,877.967
Short-term investments 8 3,166,857 3,141,395
AFS financial assets 9 738,460,769 691,951,622
HTM investments - 10 97,676,722 97,551,958

P854,300,804 P805,522,942

The following table demonstrates Association's best estimate of the sensitivity to
reasonable possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, to
the Association’s net income and equity as at December 31:

Effect on Net

Change in Basis Points (bps) Income/Equity

2016 Increase by 13 bps P1,110,591
Decrease by 13 bps (1,110,591)

2015 Increase by 27 bps 2,174 912
Decrease by 27 bps (2,174,912)

The Association does not carry debt instrument with variable interest rate and, thus,
is not exposed to cash flow interest rate risk.

Interest rate risk is mitigated by the Association's BOT by constructing a portfolio of
debenture instruments with diversified maturities. Any excess cash of the Association
are temporarily invested in time deposits with the term to maturity of 35 days upto 3
months and later placed in instruments with longer tenors.

The Association believes that the analysis above is considered to be representative
of the interest rate risk,

Equily Price Risk

Equity price risk is the risk that value of the instrument will fluctuate as a result of
changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency
risk), whether caused by factors specific to an individual investment, its issuer or all
factors affecting all instruments traded in the market.

The Association's equity price risk exposure relates to investments designated as
AFS financial assets with carrying balances of P22.72 million and P21.75 million as
at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively (see Note 9). The value of these
equity securities will fluctuate with changes in market conditions.

A 2.81% (2015: 7.00%) decrease in stock prices would have decreased equity by
P0.64 million (2015: P1.52 million) as at December 31, 2016, with all variables
remaining constant. An equal change in the opposite direction would have increased
equity by an equal but opposite amount.

In 2016 and 2015, the Association determined the reasonably possible change in

Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) Index based on the historical fluctuation of equity
securities the Assaciation holds as of the reporting date.
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6. Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying value due
to the relatively short-term maturity of these financial instruments.

The carrying amount of the Association's HTM investments approximate its fair value
at year end. Management believes that the effect of discounting and future cash
flows for these instruments using the prevailing market is not significant.

The recurring fair value of AFS financial assets are determined by reference to
quoted market prices, at the close of business on the reporting date.

Fair Value Hierarchy
The different levels have been defined as follows:

= Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

* Level2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or
indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

= Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs).

The fair value of AFS financial assets using Level 1 inputs is P761.18 million and
P713.70 million as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively (see Note 9).

The Association has no financial instruments categorized under Level 2 and 3. There
has been no transfer between levels in 2016 and 2015.

7. Cash and Cash Equivalents

As at December 31, this account consists of

2016 2015
Cash on hand P30,149 P998,109
Cash in banks 12,772,323 10,197,865
Cash equivalents 2,224,133 2,680,102

P15,026,605 P13,876,076

Cash in banks earn annual interest ranging from 0.75% to 1.25% at respective bank
deposit rates both in 2016 and 2015.

Cash equivalents represent a 90-day time deposit with an average annual interest
rate of 1.00% in 2016 and 2015.

Interest income net of final tax recognized in profit or loss which is presented under
“Interest income”, amounted to P0.10 million and P0.26 million for the years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
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8. Short-term Investments

This account consists of a 180-day placement amounting to P3.17 million and
P3.14 million as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, which earns interest
of 1.00% per annum for both 2016 and 2015.

Interest income eamed from this placement, net of final tax, amounted to P14,206
and P2,889 in 2016 and 2015, respectively.

9. Available-for-Sale Financial Assets

As at December 31, this account consists of:

20186 2015
Government debt securities P380,686,513 P396,250,550
Corporate debt securities 357,774,256 295,701,072
Equity securities 22,717,658 21,748,792

P761,178,427 P713,700,414

The reconciliation of the carrying amount of the investments at the beginning and
end of the year is shown below:

Note 2016 2015
Balance at beginning of year P713,700,414 P674,708,931
Additions during the year 265,249,858 109,123,517
Reclassification 10 - (14,622,975)
Disposals during the year (208,349,519) (32,856,345)
Amortization of premium during the year (4,361,443) (2,056,443)
Accretion of discount during the year 2,143,130 704,271
Movement in fair value reserve (7,204,013) (21,300,542)
Balance at end of year P761,178,427 P713,700,414

This account represents investments in government debt securities and corporate
bonds with interest rates ranging from 4.00% to 6.88% in 2016 and 4.00% to 8.13%
in 2015.

Interest income on AFS financial assets, net of final tax, amounted to P28.78 million
and P29.21 million in 2016 and 2015, respectively. Dividend income in 2016 and
2015 amounted to P0.45 million and P0.48 million, respectively. Gain on sale of AFS
financial assets amounted to P0.31 million and P1.41 million in 2016 and 2015,
respectively.

The fair value reserve on AFS financial assets recognized in statements of assets,
liabilities and fund balance amounted to P0.62 million loss and P6.58 million gain as
at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

On October 7, 2015, an AFS financial asset amounting to P14.29 million with a fair
value reserve of P0.38 million was reclassified to HTM investments. As at date of
reclassification, the EIR was 4.63% and the estimated cash flows to be recovered
upon maturity of the investment on February 2032 amounted to P23.82 million.
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As at December 31, 20186, the fair value of the reclassified investments amounted to
P13.37 million and the unamortized fair value gain that would have been recognized
in other comprehensive income if the AFS financial assets had not been reclassified
amounted to P0.17 million for the year ended December 31, 2016. The carrying
amount of the reclassified financial assets amounted to P13.54 million as at
December 31, 2016.

The reclassification was triggered to comply with the requirement of the IC that the
Association should maintain enough reserves in the form of government securities,
which are to be held to maturity, to satisfy any valid benefit claim of its members.
Management believes that the Association has the capability to hold the reclassified
securities until maturity,

10. Held-to-Maturity Investments

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the reconciliation of the carrying amount of the
Association’s held-to-maturity investments are as follows:

Note 2016 2015
Balance at beginning of year P97,551,958 P84,490,843
Additions during the year ) 46,936,510 -
Reclassification 9 - 13,888,454
Disposals for the year (47,576,000) -
Amortization of premium during the year 764,254 (827,339)
Balance at end of year P97,676,722 P97,551,958

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, this account represents the Association's
investments in government debt securities with interest ranging from 4.25% to 5.58%
per annum,

Interest income on HTM investments, net of final tax, amounted to P4.40 million and
P4.09 million in 2016 and 2015, respectively.

This investment is in compliance with Section 405 of the Insurance Code and
Insurance Memorandum Circular 8-2006 requiring all microinsurance mutual benefit
associations to establish a Guaranty Fund and to deposit cash or government
securities equivalent to the Guaranty Fund with the Bureau of Treasury to cover for
any valid benefit claim of any of its members. The HTM investments will be
re-invested in similar instruments upon maturity.

The contractual maturities of the Association’'s HTM investments as at December 31

are as follows:
- 2018
More than
On demand 1to3years  4to5years 5 Years
2016 - - - P97,676,722
2015 P47,596,727 - - 49.955.231

D: 7



11. Receivables

As at December 31, this account consists of:

Note 2016 2015
Interest receivables " P5,912,139 P7,337,163
Advances to officers and employees 1,045,722 1,050,347
Due from a related party 12 - 5,197,277
Others 79,145 447 928

P7,037,006 P14,032,715

Interest receivables pertain to accrued interest of AFS financial assets and
HTM investments, Advances to officers and employees refers to receivables from
loans and advances granted to the Association's officers and employees.

Interest income eamed on Advances to officers and employees amounted to
P38,008 and P38,780 in 2016 and 2015, respectively.

12. Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered related party if one party has control, joint control, or
significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.
The key management personnel of the Association are also considered to be related
parties. The Association’s key management personnel are composed of the senior
management and directors.

Outstanding

Balance
i Amount of the Due from (o)
Transaction Year Note Transacti Related Parties Torms Conditions
Entity under Common
Key Management
* Members' 2018 123 P151,267,356 P -
contributions and
gremiums collected
2015 184,259,183 5197277  Payable on demand; Unsecured; no
non-inferast bearing impairment
* Claims and benefts 2016 12p 40,142,438 (1,068,208) Payable on demand; Unsecured
paid non-interest bearing
2015 42,088,426
= Share in resmbursable 2016 12¢ 12,131,641
expense
2015 17,752 657 -
TOTAL 2018 (P1,068,209)
TOTAL 2015 P5,187,277

Outstanding receivables from and payables to related parties are expected to be
settied in cash.

Notes:

12a Tulay Sa Pag-unlad, Inc. (TSPI), an entity with the same key management as
the Association, is a nonstock, nonprofit organization, whose mission is to
provide individuals and communities the opportunity to experience fullness of
life through small and micro-enterprise development. Effective January 1, 2007,
TSP collects members' contributions and premiums from the Association's
members.
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12b TSPI also settles claims to the beneficiaries of members on behalf of the
Association using the members' contributions and premiums collected, In
instances where the claims to be settled exceeds the amount of members’
contributions and premiums collected, TSP advances the payment of claims to
the beneficiaries. As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, no outstanding balance
represents the settlement claims advanced by TSPI.

12c TSPI provides the promotion and marketing of the Association's products to the
TSPI's microfinance clients including collection of members’ contributions and
premiums for the said products of the Association. The Association reimburses
the marketing and sales expenses incurred by TSPl on behalf of the
Association, Effective July 1, 2016, TSPI charges the Association 7% service
fee based on members' contributions and premiums collected for the services
rendered for the Association. In 2016 and 2015, marketing and sales expenses
amounting to P12.13 million and P17.75 million, respectively, were recognized
as part of "Marketing and sales” in profit or loss.

Compensation of Key Management Personnel

Total short-term remuneration of the Association's key management personnel
amounted to P7.01 million and P3.32 million for the years ended December 31, 2016
and 2015, respectively and are recorded under “Salaries and other employee
benefits” in profit or loss. Post-employment benefits amounted to P1.43 million and
P0.86 million for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

13. Property, Equipment and Computer Software - net

Movements in this account are as follows:

Office
Furniture Transporation
and and Office Bullding and Computer
Fixtures Equipment Equipment Improvements Software Total
Cost
January 1, 2015 P4,882 285 P3734500 P14.834519 P325.573 P4837,2%0 P2BGT4513
Additions 428380 . W5 435 - 1,110,014 2533825
Disposalsiretiraments {774.115) - (3,704 628) - (893,785) (B.372,529)
Decamber 31, 2015 4,336 550 3,734,500 14,585,426 325,578 4 853 458 25235813
Additians 242,280 - 657,530 - 1,258,852 2188672
Dispossis/retiements (158,203} (534 500) (1.944 854) - {113,680y (3.156,212)
December 31, 2016 4,420,627 2,800,000 10,698,087 325979 5,933 670 24238373
A lated Dop
and Amortization
January 1, 2015 4,225.423 1837832 10,165,571 38,602 3,004 524 19,272852
Depreciation and
amertization for the yeor 631,511 545,399 2486327 65,185 1,418,896 5121928
_ Disposaisiretirements (773877 - (3.704,237) = (883,592) {5,371,308)
Decembar 31, 2015 4,082,957 2,387834 8,917 861 104,787 3,529,828 18,023074
Depreciation and
amertization for the yesr 205 485 440,000 2,254,208 65,186 1,080,166 4,085,038
Disposaia/ratiremants (158,178) (934 500) {1,840,202) - (118 80%) {3,15% 589}
December 31, 2018 4,130,244 1,883,331 9,271,568 169,993 4,491 385 18,985 824
Net Carrying Amounts
December 21, 2015 P283.533 P1,348, 669 P3,057,765 P221,182 P13236%0 PB212 838
December 31, 2016 P250,383 P205,65% P1,426 529 P155,888 P1,502,285 P4,281,852
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14. Other Assets

As at December 31, this account consists of:

2016 2015

Prepaid expenses P1,762,018 P614,332
Fidelity bond deposits 250,000 250,000
Cash held by investment manager/custodian 123,087 80,215
P2,135,085 PS44 547

Prepaid expenses include unused supplies, medicard premium and prepaid
reinsurance premium,

The fidelity bond deposits in 2016 and 2015 as required by the IC have a term of
one (1) year expiring on June 25, 2017 and 2018, respectively.

Cash held by investment manager/custodian pertains to cash advanced to the
investment manager/custodian for the acquisition of equity securities.

15. Claims Payable

As at December 31, this account consists of:

2016 2015
IBNR claims P3,386,108 P4,020,189
Claims due and unpaid 768,250 990,268

P4,154,358 P5,010,457

Claims due and unpaid consists of claims payable for basic life insurance products
amounting to P0.26 million and P0.41 million in 2016 and 2015, respectively, and
claims payable for credit life insurance products amounting to P0.51 million and
P0.58 million in 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Movements in IBNR claims are as follows:

2016 2015
Balance at beginning of year P4,020,189 P2,500,000
Increase (decrease) in IBNR (634,081) 1,520,189
Balance at end of year P3,386,108 P4,020,189

Movements in claims due and unpaid are as follows:

2016 2015
Balance at beginning of year P990,268 P1,131.544
Claims and benefits incurred 39,920,420 41,957,150
Claims and benefits paid (40,142,438)  (42,098,426)
Balance at end of year P768,250 P890,268
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Claims and benefits expense recognized in profit or loss as at December 31 is as

follows:
2016 2015
Claims and benefits incurred P39,920,420 P41,957,150
Increase (decrease) in IBNR (634,081) 1,520,189

P39,286,339 P43,477,339

16. Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities

As at December 31, this account consists of:

Note 2016 2015
Accrued expenses P9,061,786 P7,399,275
Accrued interest 18 26,992,883 27,234,431
Payables to regulatory agencies 3,805,963 2,121,585

P39,860,632 P36,755,291

The Association accrued interest on equity value received from the members as
required by IC, however, effective February 1, 2016, interest rate on equity value
reserve was reduced from 2.00% to 0.50% as approved by the BOT.

Payables to regulatory agencies include payables to Bureau of Internal Revenue,
Philhealth, Pag-lbig Fund and Social Security System. Accrued expenses pertains to
liabilities on utilities and services incurred.

17. Aggregate Reserves

In compliance with Section 410 of the Insurance Code, the Association accumulates
and maintains, out of the periodic members' contributions and premiums collected,
sufficient reserves for future contractual obligations for which it holds funds in
securities satisfactory to the Insurance Commissioner consisting of bonds of the
Government of the Philippines, or any of its political subdivisions and
instrumentalities, or other good securities as may be approved by the Insurance
Commissioner. Moreover, the said reserve liability estabiished in accordance with
actuarial procedures is approved by the Insurance Commissioner.

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the aggregate reserves amounted to
P13.13 million and P12.41 million, respectively.

On December 28, 2016, the IC released Circular Letter No. 2016-66, Valuation
standards for life insurance policy reserves, requiring all life insurance companies to
calculate the reserves for traditional life insurance policies with a term of one year or
less using the unearned premium method. The new valuation standards for life
insurance policy reserves shall be implemented effective January 1, 2017.

The application of the new valuation standards for life insurance policy reserves have
no significant impact on the Association.
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18. Equity Value Reserves

In compliance with Section 409 of the Insurance Code, the Association maintains an
equity value reserves of 50% of the total mandatory members' contributions and
premiums collected thereon.

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the equity value reserves amounted to
P329.89 million and P316.44 million, respectively.

Interest expense on equity value reserves amounted to P0.81 million and
P6.60 million for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively,

Accrued interest on equity value reserves as at December 31, 2016 and 2015
amounted to P26.99 million and P27.23 million, respectively (see Note 16).

19. Guaranty Fund Reserves

As a microinsurance mutual benefit association, the Association is required to
maintain Guaranty Fund amounting to P5.00 million, and every year thereafter,
increase its Guaranty Fund by an amount equivalent to 5.00% of gross premium
collections until the amount of the Guaranty Fund shall reach 25.00% of the required
networth for existing domestic life insurance companies.

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the guaranty fund reserves amounted to
P90.14 million and P82.57 million, respectively.

The Guaranty fund shall be deposited with IC in cash, or in government securities
with a total value equal to such amount. As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the
Association had restricted investments of P97.68 milion and P97.55 million,
respectively, with the Bureau of Treasury to cover for any valid benefit claim of any of
its members (see Note 10).

The amount transferred from general fund to guaranty fund reserves amounted to
P7.56 million and P8.21 million in 2016 and 2015, respectively.

20. General Fund Balance

Section 408 of the Insurance Code requires a mutual benefit association to only
maintain free and unassigned surplus of not more than twenty percent (20%) of its
total liabilities as verified by the Commissioner. Any amount in excess shall be
returned to the members by way of dividends, enhancing the equity value or
providing benefits in kind and other relevant services.

The balance of funds assigned for members’ benefits amounted to P237.46 million
and P225.63 million in 2016 and 2015, respectively while assigned for capacity
building amounted to P104,32 million in 2016 and P98.39 million in 2015.

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the general fund balance amounted to
P74.12 million and P87.99 million, respectively.
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21. Retirement Benefit Cost

The Association has a funded, non-contributory defined benefit retirement plan
covering all regular employees. Contributions and costs are determined in
accordance with the actuarial studies made for the plan. Annual cost is determined
by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method, The actuarial
valuation is made on an annual basis and the latest actuarial valuation was made as

at December 31, 2016.

The following table shows reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing
balances for net defined benefit asset and its components.

Defined Benefit Obligation Fair Value of Plan Assats Numwmmm
2018 2015 2016 205 2015 2m8
Halance at Jarusry 1 P2,454.326 P3.351,532 P8, 271,817 P7.363542 (F2,807,191) (P4,017.0C3)
Included kn Profit or Loss
Curtert servce cost 4150186 Q5622 - - 41505 425522
Intarast co=t 137,303 150 485 293,702 345 a3 (166,30%) {468 355
543,308 578,107 93,702 RS- 249,608 2%628
Inctuded n OCf
Rermoasuremant (o8 (gRin):
Athustinl loss (gan) arising fram;
assumphiors = . - . -
Financial assumptions 28,527 [217,962) - - 28,527 (297,952)
Expavience adjustment 131,189 (1,245358) . - 131,189 [1,245.358)
Retum on plan ssssts excudng
imerest income - - (383,.287) (808,066) 383,287 £0E 055
Changa in the sifect of aszet celing
(moverment n asset coling -
IMorest expense an effect of
asset cailing) - = 709008 (2570.451) (709,008) 2,570 451
169,718 {%,463.320) I2BT4 {3,275,508) (168,025) 1813185
gf':*';.&u paid by the employer - 800,000 830,000 {200,000) (830,000)
Benatits pardt {80,125) {30,128) 5 . %
{80,125) 819,574 230,000 {900,000) (830,000)
Balance ot December 31 P3,087, 224 PRase e P5,710,8%4  P5271.517 {P3,623,610) (P2,807 191)
The changes in the effect of asset ceiling are as follows:
2016 2015
Balance at beginning of year P3,555,699 P847,208
Remeasurement gain on the change in the
effect of asset ceiling (709,008) 2,670,451
Interest expense on effect of asset ceiling 183,811 38,040
Balance at end of year P3,030,502 P3,555,699
The Association's plan assets consist of the following:
2016 2015
Unit investment trust funds P8,285,194 P8,844 525
Mutual funds 1,456,067 -
Cash 75 212
Trust fee payable - (17,521)
P9,741,336 P8,827,216
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The Association is not required to contribute to the defined benefit retirement plan for
2016. The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date:

2016 2015
Discount rate 5.08% 517%
Future salary growth 5.00% 5.00%

Assumptions regarding future mortality have been based on the 2001 CSO Table -
Generational mortality table. The current members' longevity is at age 30.50 in 2016.

The weighted-average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 5.42 years and
6.17 years as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Maturity analysis of the benefit payments:

2016
Carrying  Contractual Within Within ~ More than
Amount Cash Flows 1Year 1-5Years 5 Years
Defined benefit
obligation P3,087,224 P2,541,620 P1,456,945 P179,394 P205,281
Sensitivity Analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial
assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined
benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

Defined Benefit Obligation

Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) (P302,931) P367,000
Future salary growth (1% movement) 330,952 (279,052)

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows
expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the
assumption shown.

These defined benefit plans expose the Association to actuarial risks, such as
longevity risk, interest rate risk, and market (investment) risk.

The Association is not required to pre-fund the future defined benefits payable under
the Retirement Plan before they become due. For this reason, the amount and timing
of contributions to the plan assets are at the Association’s discretion. However, in the
event a benefit claim arises and the plan assets is insufficient to pay the claim, the
shortfall will then be due and payable from the Association to the plan assets.



22. Supplementary Information Required by the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR)
Based on Revenue Regulations (RR) No. 15-2010

In addition to the disclosures mandated under PFRSs, and such other standards
and/or conventions as may be adopted, companies are required by the BIR to
provide in the notes to the financial statements, certain supplementary information
for the taxable year, The amounts relating to such supplementary information may
not necessarily be the same with those amounts disclosed in the financial statements
which were prepared in accordance with PFRSs.

The following is the tax information required for the taxable year ended
December 31, 2016:

A. Withholding Taxes

Tax on compensation and benefits P3,162,201
Expanded withholding taxes 195,401
P3,357,602

B. All Other Taxes (Local and National)

Other taxes paid during the year recognized under
“Taxes and licenses"” account under General and
Administrative Expenses
License and permit fees P10,725

C. Tax Contingencies

The Association has no deficiency tax assessment or any tax case, litigation,
and/or prosecution in courts or bodies outside the BIR as at December 31, 2016.
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Financial Statements

Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and gualitative
characteristics

TSPI MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION, INC.

PFRSs Practice Statement Management Commentary

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

PFRS 1
(Revised)

First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards

Amendments to PFRS 1 and PAS 27: Cost of an
Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlied Entity
or Associate

Amendments to PFRS 1- Additional Exemptions for
First- time Adopters

Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time

Amendments to PFRS 1. Severe Hyperinfiation
and Removal of Fixed Date for First-time

Amendments to PFRS 1: Government Loans

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2009 -2011 Cycle:
First- time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards -Repeated Application of PFRS 1

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2009 -2011
Cycle: Borrowing Cost Exemption

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2011 -2013 Cycle:
PFRS version that a first-time adopter can apply

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2014 -2016 Cycle:
Deletion of shori-term exemptions for first-time

PFRS 2

Share-based Payment

Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions
and Canceliations

Amendments to PFRS 2; Group Cash-setiled
Share- based Payment Transactions

Annual Improvements ta PFRSs 2010 -2012
Cycle: Meaning of 'vesting condition’

Amendments to PFRS 2. Classification and
Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions

PFRS 3
(Revised)

Business Combinations

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2010 -2012
Cycdle: Classlfication and measurement of
contingent consideration

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2011 -2013 Cyds:
Scope exclusion for the formation of joint arrangements

PFRS 4

Insurance Contracts

Amendments to PAS 38 and PFRS 4. Financial v
Guarantee Contracts

Amendments to PFRS 4: Applying PFRS 8,
Financial Instruments with PFRS 4, Insurance

{.




Non-current Assets Heid for Sale and Dlsoonﬁnued

Operations

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2012 -2014
Cycle: Changes in method for dispesal

PFRS 6

Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

PFRS 7

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Amendments to PFRS 7: Transition

Amendments to PAS 38 and PFRS 7:
Reclassification of Financial Assets

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7;
Reclassification of Financial Assets - Effective Date

Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosuras
about Financial Instrumenis

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures -
Transfers of Financial Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures -Offsetting

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to PFRS 7: Mandatory Effective Date
of PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2012 -2014
Cycle: 'Continuing involvement’ for servicing

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2012 -2014 Cycle.
Offsetting disclosures in condensed interim
financial statements

PFRS 8

‘Operating Segments

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2010 -2012 Cycle:
Disclosures on the aggregation of operating segments

PFRS 9

Financial Instruments

v

Hedge Accounting and amendments to PFRS 8,
PFRS 7 and PAS 39

PFRS 9
(2014)

Financial Instruments

el

PFRS 10

Consolidated Financial Statements

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 11, and PFRS 12
Consolldated Financial Statements, Joint
Arrangements and Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities: Trangition Guidance

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12, and PAS 27
(2011): Investment Entities

Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28: Sale or
Contribution of Assats between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 28:
Investment Entties: Applying the Consolidation

*These stendards or amendments will be effactive for annual perods subsequent fo December 31. 2016 and were nol

eally adopted by the Association
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PFRS 11

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 11, and PFRS 12:
Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint
Arrangements and Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities: Transition Guidance

Amendments to PFRS 11: Accounting for Acquisitions
of Interests in Joint Operations

PFRS 12

Disciosure of Interests in Other Entities

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 11, and PFRS 12:
Censolidated Financial Statements, Joint

and Disclosure of Interasts in Other
Entities; Transition Guidance

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12, and PAS 27
(2011): Investment Entities

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 28:
Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2014 -2016
Cycie: Ciarification of the scope of the standard

PFRS 13

Fair Value Measurement

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2010 -2012 Cycle:
Measurement of short-term receivables and payables

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2011 -2013 Cycle:
Scope of porifolio exception

PFRS 14

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

PFRS 15

Revenue from Coniracts with Customers

PFRS 16

Leases

Philippine Accounting Standards

PAS 1
(Revised)

Presentation of Financial Statements

Amendment to PAS 1; Capital Disclosures

Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Putiable
Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on

Amendments to PAS 1, Presentation of ltems of
Other Comprehensive Income

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2009 -2011 Cycie:
Presentation of Financial Statements -Comparative
Information beyond Minimum Requirements

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2009 -2011
Cycle: Presentation of the Opening Statement of
Financial Position and Related Notes

Amendments 1o PAS 1. Disclosure Initiative

PAS 2

Inventories

PAS7

Statement of Cash Fiows

Amendments to PAS 7. Disclosure Initiative

v

PAS 8

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors

PAS 10

Evenis after the Reporting Pericd

*These standards or amendments will be effective for anhuai periods subsequent (0 December 31, 2075 and were not

early adaptad by the Association
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Income Taxes

Amendment to PAS 12: Deferred Tax: Recovery
of Underlying Assets

Amendments to PAS 12: Recognition of Deferred
Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses

PAS 16

Property, Plant and Equipment

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2009 -2011

Cycle: Property, Plant and Equipment -
Classification of Servicing Equipment

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2010 -2012 Cycle:
Restatement of accumulated depreciation (amortization)
on revaluation (Amendments ta PAS 16 and PAS 38)

Amendments to PAS 18 and PAS 38; Clarification of
Accepiable Methods of Depreciation and Amoriization

Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 41: Agriculture:
Bearer Plants

PAS 17

Leases

PAS 18

Revenue

PAS 19
(Amended)

Employee Benefits

Amendments to PAS 19; Defined Benefit
Plans: Employee Contributions

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2012 -2014 Cycle:
Discount rate in a regional market sharing the
same currency -e.g. the Eurozone

PAS 20

Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of
Government Assistance

PAS 21

The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Amendment: Net Investment in a Forsign Operation

PAS 23
(Revised)

Borrowing Costs

PAS 24
(Revised)

Related Party Disclosures

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2010 -2012
Cycle: Definition of ‘related pany'

PAS 26

Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Beneafit Plans

PAS 27
(Amended)

Separate Financial Statements

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12, and PAS 27
(2011); Investment Entities

Amendments to PAS 27: Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements

“These standards or amendments will be effective for annual periods subsequent to December 31, 2016 and were not

oarly acopted by the Assoclation.

4




Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Amendmentis to PFRS 10 and PAS 28; Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 28:
Investment Entities: Applying the Consalidation

Annual Improvements o PFRSs 2014 -20186 Cycle:
Measuring an associate or joint venture at fair

PAS 28

Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

PAS 32

Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation

Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1. Puttable
Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on

Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights Issues

Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetfing Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2009 -2011
Cycie: Financial Instruments Presentation -
Income Tax Consequences of Distributions

PAS 33

Earnings per Share

PAS 34

Interim Financial Reperting

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2009 -2011
Cycle: Intenim Financial Reporting -Segment
Assets and Liabilities

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2012 -2014
Cycle: Disclosure of information “elsewhera in
the interim financial report’

PAS 36

Impairment of Assets

Ameandments to PAS 36: Recoverable
Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial

PAS 37

Pravisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

PAS 38

Intangible Assets

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2010 -2012 Cycle:
Restatement of accumulated depreciation (amortization)
on revaluation (Amendments fo PAS 16 and PAS 38)

Amendments to PAS 18 and PAS 38: Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization

*These standards or amendments will be effective for annual periods subsequent to December 31, 2016 and wers not

early adopled by the Association
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Amendments to PAS 39: Transition and Initial
Recognition of Financial Assets and Financial Lisbilities

Amendments to PAS 39. Cash Flow Hedge v
Accounting of Forecast Intragroup Transactions
Amendments to PAS 39: The Fair Value Option v
Amendments to PAS 38 and PFRS 4: Financial v
Guarantee Contracts
Amendments to PAS 3% and PFRS 7:
Reclassification of Financial Assets
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7:
Reclassification of Financial Assets -Effective Date
Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC - & v
and PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives
Amendment to PAS 38: Efigible Hedged Items v
Amendment to PAS 38: Novation of Derivatives v
and Continuation of Hedge Accounting

PAS 40 Investment Property v
Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2011 -2013 Cydle: v
Inter- relationship of PERS 3 and PAS 40
{Amendment to PAS 40)
Amendments to PAS 40: Transfers of Investment W

PAS 41 Agriculture v
Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 41; Agriculture: Bearer o
Plants

Philippine Interpretations

IFRIC 1 Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration v
and Similar Liabilities

IFRIC 2 Members' Share in Co-operative Entities and v
Similar instruments

IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease

IFRIC 5 Rights fo Interests arising from Decommissioning,
Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation

IFRIC 6 Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific Market v
- Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment

IFRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under v
PAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary

IFRIC 8 Reassessment of Embedded Dernivatives ]
Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC - 9 v
and PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives

IFRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment v

IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements

IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes v

*Thesa slandards or smendments will be effective for annual periods subsequent to December 31, 2016 and wore no!

early adopled by the Association
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'REFO
SNERORI

INTERPRET/

IFRIC 14 'AS 18 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, v
Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction
Amendments to Philippine Interpretations IFRIC- 14, v
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement
IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation v
IFRIC 17 Distnbutions of Non-cash Assets to Owners v
IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers v
IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments v
IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a V-
Surface Mine
IFRIC 21 Levies v
IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and v
Advance Consideration
SiC-7 Introduction of the Eure v
Sic-10 Government Assistanca - No Specific Relation v
to Operating Activities
Sic-18 Operating Leases - Incentives v
SiC-25 Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity v
or its Shareholders
Sic-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Invoiving v
the Legal Form of a Laase
SiC-29 Service Concesslon Arrangements: Disclosures. v
Sic-31 Revenus - Barter Transactions Involving v
Advertising Services
Sic-32 Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs v
Philippine Interpretations Committee Questions and Answers
PIC Q&A PAS 18, Appendix, paragraph 9 -Revenue recognition v
2006-01 for sales of property units under pre-completion
contracts
PIC Q&A PAS 27.10(d) -Clarification of criteria for exemption from v
2008-02 presenting consolidated financial statements
PIC Q&A PAS 1.103(a) -Basis of preparation of financial v
2007-01- statements if an entity has not applied PFRSs in full
Revised
PIC Q8A PAS 20,24.37 and PAS 39.43 - Accounting for v
2007-02 government loans with low interest rates [see PIC
Q&A No. 2008-02]
PIC Q&A PAS 40.27 -Valuation of bank real and other properties v
2007-03 acquired (ROPA)
PIC Q&A PAS 101.7 -Application of criteria for a qualifying NPAE v
2007-04
PiC Q&A PAS 18.78 -Rate used in discounting post- v
2008-01- employment benefit obligations
Revised
PIC Q&A PAS 20.43 -Acceunting for government loans with low v
2008-02 interest rates under the amendments to PAS 20

*These standards or amendments will be sffective for annual periods subsequent to December 31, 2016 and were not
early adopled by the Association 7
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Framework.23 and PAS 1.23 -Financial

20039-01 statements prepared on a basis other than going
PIC Q&8A PAS 38.AG71-72 -Rate used in determining the v
2008-02 fair value of government securities in the
PIC Q&A PAS 39, AG71-72 -Rate usad in determining the v
2010-01 fair value of govemment securities in the

Philippines
PIC Q&A PAS 1R.16 -Basis of preparation of financial statements v
2010-02
PIC Q&A PAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Ve
2010-03 Current/non-current classification of a callable term

loan
PIC Q&A PAS 1.10(f) -Requirements for 2 Third Statement v
2011-01 of Financial Position
PIC Q&A PFRS 3.2 -Common Control Business Combinations v
2011-02
PIC Q&A Accounting for Inter-company Loans ¥
2011-03
PIC Q&A PAS 32.37-38 -Costs of Public Offering of Shares f
2011-04
PIC Q&A PFRS 1.D1-D8 -Fair Value or Revaluation as v
2011-05 Deemed Cost
PIC Q&A PFRS 3, Business Combinations (2008), and PAS 40, v
2011-06 Investment Property -Acquisition of Investment

properties -asset acquisition or business combination?
PIC Q&A PFRS 3.2 -Application of the Paoling of interests v

2012-01 Method for Business Combinations of Entities Under
Common Control in Consofidated Financial Statements

PIC Q&A Cost of a New Building Constructed on the Site of v
2012-02 a Previous Building

PIC Q&A Applicability of SMEIG Final Q&As on the Application v
2013-01 of IFRS for SMEs to Philippine SMEs

PIC Q&A Conforming Changes to PIC Q&As - Cycle 2013 v

2013-02

PIC Q&A PAS 19 -Accounting for Employae Benefits under a v
2013-03 Defined Contribution Plan subject to Requirements of

(Revised Repubfic Act (RA) 7641, The Philippine Retirement

PIC Q&A Conforming Chanrges to PIC Q&As - Cycle 2015 v
2015-01

PIC Q&A Confarming Changes to PIC Q&As - Cycle 2016 v

2016-01

PIC Q&A PAS 32 and PAS 38 - Accounting Treatment of v
2018-02 Club Shares Held by an Entity

PIC Q&A Application of PFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with v

2016-04 Customers® on Sale of Residential Properties under
Pre- Completion Contracts

*These standards or amendments will be effective for annual periods subsaquent to December 31, 2015 and were not
earnly adopted by the Assosiation 8



TSPl Mutual Benefit Association, Inc.

Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements v
Conceplual Framework Phase A: Cbjectives and quatitative
characteristics

’ PFRSs Pmﬁﬁce Statement Management Commentary . | v
Philippine Financial Reporfing Standards |

PFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Philippine Finonciél Reporting ' v
(Revised)  Standards

Amendments fo PFRS 1 and PAS 27: Cost of an . v
Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Confrolled Enfity or
Assaciate
| Amendments to PFRS |: Additional Exemptions tor First-
time Adopters

Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exernption from | v
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-fime Adopters

Amendments 1o PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation and v
Removal of Fixed Date for First-time Adopters

Amendments to PFRS 1: Governmeant Loans

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2009 - 201 | Cycle: First-
lime Adopfion of Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards - Repected Appfication of PFRS |

Annual Improvements io PFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle: v
Bomrowing Cos! Exemption

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle: PFRS v |
version that @ first-time adopter can apply

Annual iImprovements fo PFRSs 2014 - 2014 Cycle: | v
Delelion of short-term exemptions for first-time adopters

| PFRS 2 Share-based Payment v

\ Amendments 1o PFRS 2: Vesling Condiitions and v
Cancellations

Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-setlied Share- |
‘ based Payment Transactions
\
[

Annual iImprovements to PFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle: v
Meaning of 'vesting congition'

Amendments to PERS 2: Classificafion and Measurement | ¢
of Share-based Payment Transactions

PFRS 3 Business Combinations

(Revised) | snnual improvements fo PFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle:

Classification and measurement of contfingent
consideration

Annual Improvements fo PFéSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle: Scope v
exclusion for the formation of jeint arrangements

} PFRS 4 Insurance Confracts

} Amendmenis to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial Guarantee v
Contracts

Amendments fo PFRS 4: Applying PFRS 9, Financial v
Instruments with PFRS 4, Insurance Coniracts

PFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued ‘ | o



§mts s
imts 7

PFRS 8
PFRS ¢

PFRS 9
(AOIey:

PFRS 10

PFRS 11

Operations

Annual iImprovements 1o PFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle:
Changes in method for disposal

Exptprgﬂon for and Evaluation of Mineral Rescurces

Financial Instruments: Disclosures
Amendments to PFRS 7: Transition

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of

| Financial Assets

Amendments to PAS 39 ongl PFRS 7 'Reé!cssiﬁcolion of

Financial Assels - Effective Daote and Transition

Amenaments fo PFRS 7: Improving Disclosures about

Financial Instruments

Amencments to PFRS 7: Disclosutes - Transfers of
Financial Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures — Offsetting Financial

Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendments fo PFRS 7: Mandatory Effective Dote of
PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle:
'‘Continuing involvement' for servicing contracts

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle:
Offselting disclosures in condensed interim financial
statements

Operating Segments
Annual Improvements 1o PFRSs 2010 — 2012 Cycle:

Disclosures on the aggregation of operoting segments

Financial Instruments

Hedge Accounting and amendments to PFRS 9, PFRS 7
and PAS 39

Financial Instruments

Consolidated Financial Statements

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 11, and PFRS 12;
Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint Amangements
and Disclosure of Interests in Other Enfifies: Transition
Guidonce

Amendments fo PFRS 10, PFRS 12, and PAS 27 (2011):
investment Entities

Amendments fo PFRS 10 and PAS 28; Sale or
Coentribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or joint Venture

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 28; Investment |

Entities: Applying the Consofdation Exceplion

Joint Arrangemenis

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 11, and PFRS 12:
Consolidaled Financial Statements, Joint Amangements

and Disclosure of Interests in Other Enfities: Transition
Guidance

Amendments fo PFRS 11: Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations

}




PFRS 12

Disclosure of Interests in Other Enfities

Amendments 10 PFRS 10, PFRS 11, and PFRS 12;
Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint Arangements
and Disclosure of Interests in Other Enfifies: Transition
Guidonce

Amendments fo PFRS 10, PFRS 12, and PAS 27 (2011):
investment Entities

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 28: Investiment
 Enfifies: Applying the Consolicafion Excepfion

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2014 — 2016 Cycle:
Clarification of the scope of the standard

PAS1
(Revised)

Philippine Accounting Standards

PFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
Annual iImprovements to PFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle:
Measurement of short-term receivables ond payables 7
Annual Improverments to PFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle: Scope
of portfolic exception

PFRS 14 Regulatory Deleral Accounts

|
PFRS 15 Revenue from Cantracts with Customers
PFRS 16 Leases

|

Presentation of Financial Statements

Amendment to PAS 1: Capital Disclosures
Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Putiable Finoncial
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation
Amendments to PAS 1: Presentation of Items of Other
Comprg:henslye Income

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 200% — 2011 Cycle:
Presentation of Financial Statements - Comparative
Information beyond Minimum Requirements

Annual improvements to PFRSs 2009 4201 1 Cycle:
Presentation of the Opening Statement of Financial
Position and Related Notes

Amendments fo PAS 1; Disclosure Inifiative
Inverﬁories : - ‘
Stotement of Cash Flows

Amendments fo PAS 7; Disclosure Inifiative

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimaies
and Errors

Events after the Reporfing Penod

Construction Contracts

Income Taxes

Amendment to PAS 12; Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underiying Assets

Amendments fo PAS 12: Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets f_or Unreaiized Losses

PAS 16

Property, Piant and Equipment




| Annual Improvements o PFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle:
| Property, Plan! and Equipment - Classification of
Servicing Equipment

Annual Improvements 1o PFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle:
Restatement of accumulatea depreciation
{omortization) on revoluation {Amendments to PAS 16
and PAS 38)

Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 38: Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciafion and Amaortization

Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 41: Agriculture: Bearer
Plants

|

)

PAS 17 Leases
PAS 18 Revenue
PAS 19 Employee Beneﬁts
(Amended) Amendments to PAS 19: Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions
Annucl improvementis to PFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle:
Discount rate in a regional market sharing the some
cmrency e.qg. 1he Eurozone
PAS 20 ACCOunhng for Government Grants and D:sclosuve of
Gowmment Assustonce
PAS 21 The Eﬁects of Chonges in Fo¢e¢gn Exchonge Roies
Amendmcni Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
PAS 23 Borrowing Costs
(Revised)
PAS 24 Related Party Disciosures
[(Revised) T\ ual Improvements to PFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle:
Definition of ‘related pariy'
| PAS 26 Accounting and Repartfing by Refirament Banefit Plans
' PAS 27 Separate Financicl Statements
(Amended) |, endments fo PFRS 10, PERS 12, and PAS 27 (2011):
lnvestmem Entities
Amendmenu fo PAS 27: Equny Method in Separate
financial Statements
PAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
(Amended) Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28: Sale or
Contribution of Assefs between cn Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture
Amendments 1o PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 28: Investment |
Entities: Applying the Consclidation Excepfion '
Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2014 - 2014 Cycle:
Measuring on associote or joint venture ot fair value
PAS 29 Finonciol Reporflng in Hypeﬁnﬂaﬁoncrry Economies
PAS 32

; Financial lr\strumems Disclosure and Presentation

\ Amendmems to PAS 32 and PAS 1; Puttable Financial
| Instruments and Obfigations Arising on Liquidation




Amendmen! fo PAS 32: Classification of Rights Issues

Amenaments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets and
financial Liabilities

Annual Improvernents 1o PFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle:
financial Insfruments Presentation - income Tax
Consequences of Distribufions

'PAS 33
I
PAS 34

PAS 36

PAS 37

Eamings per Share
Intefm Finoncial Reporting

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle:

Interim Financial Reporting - Segment Assets and
Liabilities

| Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle:

Disclosure of infermation “elsewhere in the interdm
| financial report’

Impaiment of Assets

Amendments io PAS 34: Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

Provisions, Contingent Liabiliies and Contingen! Assels |

PAS 38

Intangible Assets

Annual improvements to PFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycie:
Restatement of cccumulated depreciation |
{amortization) on revaluation (Amendments to PAS 16
and PAS 38)

————ee, i

Amendments to PAS 14 and PAS 38: Clarificationof |
Acceplable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization i

PAS 39

PAS 40

PAS 41

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

Amendments 1o PAS 39: Transifion and Inifial Recognition |
of Financial Assets and Financial Liabities

Amendments io PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge Accounting
of Forecast Intragroup Transactions

Amendments 1o PAS 39: The Fair Value Option

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial Guorantee |
Contracts

Amendments 10 PAS 32 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of
Financial Assels

Amendments 1o PAS 39 aond PFRS 7: Reclassification of
Financial Assets - tffective Date and Transifion

Amendments 10 Philippine interpretation IFRIC-9? and
PAS 39: Embedded Detivatives

Amendment 1o PAS 39: Eligible Hedged ltemns

Amendment 10 PAS 39: Novaticn of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting

Investment Property

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2011 — 2013 Cycle: Inter- |
relafionship of PFRS 3 and PAS 40 (Amendment to PAS
40)

Amendments fo PAS 40: Transfers of Investment Property
Agriculture ‘

e i

Amendments fo PAS 16 and PAS 41: Agriculture: Bearer




Plants
i Philippine Interpretations
[IFRIC 1 Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and v
J | Similar Liabilifies
|IFRIC 2 | Members' Share In Co-operative Entities and Similar v
| Instruments
FRIC 4 Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease v
IFRIC § Rights 1o Inferasis arising from Decommissioning,
Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitaiion Funds
IFRIC & Liobilities orising frorn Pardicipating in o Specific Market - v
Waste Eectrical and Elecironic Equipment
IFRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29 v
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies
|IFRIC ¢ Reassessment of Embedded Derivafives
' Amendments fo Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-9 and o i
PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives |
IFRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impaiment v ‘
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arangements v ‘
IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes v ‘
IFRIC 14 PAS 19 - The Limit on o Defined Benefit Assel, Minimum | v
funding Requirements and their Interaction |
' T {
Amendments o Philippine Interpretations IFRIC- 14, v |
| Prepayments of a Minimurm Funding Requirement {
UFRIC16  Hedges of a Net investment in o Foreign Operation v
| IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assats to Owners Y- ‘
} b O - SO - 1
|IFRIC 18 Tfransters of Assets from Customers v
IFRIC19  Extinguishing Financial Liabisfies with Equity Instruments v
IERIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of o Surface v
Ming
IFRIC 21 Levies v
IFRIC 22 Forelgn Currency Transaciions and Advance v
Consideration
sic-7 Infroduction of the Euro v
Sic-10 Govemment Assistance - No Specific Relation to v
Operating Activities
SIC-15 Operafing Leases - Incentives vi
SIC-25 Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity or
its Shareholders
sIC-27 | Evaluating the Substance of Transaciions Invoiving the v
Legal Form of a Lease
SiC-29 Service Concession Arangements: Disclosures. v
SIC-31 Revenue - Barier Transactions Involving Advertising v
Services
SIC-32 Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs v
Philippine Interpretations Commitiee Questions and Answers
PIC QaA PAS 18, Appendix, paragraph ¢ - Revenue recognition v

2006-01 for sales of property units under pre-completion




| PIC Q&A

} PIC QaA
. 2007-01-
| Revised

PIC Q&A

200702

PIC QA
12007-03

PICQEA
2007-04

5 PIC Q&A
1 2008-01-
Itgvlud

PIC Q&A
- 2008 02

PIC QZA
2009-01

PIC QEA
2009-02

| PIC Q&A
2010-01

PIC Q&A
2010-02

PIC QBA
2010-03

| PIC QaA
1201 1-01

PIC Q&A
12011-02

PIC QaA
12011-03

'PIC Q8A
12011-04

PIC QeA
201105

i PIC Q&A
12011-06

PIC QA
12012-01
PIC QzA
12012-02

PIC QBA
12013-01

PIC Q2A
201302

PAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements -

' controcts

PAS 27.10(d) - Clarification of criteria for exemption from |
presenting censolidated financial statements

PAS 1,103(a) - Basis of preparafion of financial
staternents if an entity has not applied PFRSs in full

PAS 20.24.37 and PAS 3%.43 - Accounting for
government loans with low interest rates [see PIC QAA
No. 2008- 02]

PAS 40.27 - Valuation of bank real and other properties
acquired [ROPA)

PAS 101.7 - Application of cnteno for a qualifying NPAE

PAS 19.78 - Rate used In discouniing post-employment
benefit obligations

PAS 20.43 ~ Accounting for govemment loans with low
mteresf rates under the omendments to PAS 20

Ffomewock 23 and PAS | 23 Financial statements
prepared on a basis other than going concern

PAS 39.AG71-72 - Rate used in determining the fair
value of govemment securities in the Philippines

PAS 39.AG71-72 - Rate used In determining he foir |
value of govemment securities in the Philippines

PAS 1R.16 - Basis of preparation of financial statements

Current/non-current classification of o callable term
loan

PAS 1.10(f) - Requiremnents for a Third Statement of
F nancial Posmon

PFRS 3.2~ Common Cormol Busmess Combinaiions

Accoumlng for inter-company Loans

PAS 32.37-38 - Costs of Public Offering of Shares

PFRS 1.01-D8 -~ Fair Value or Revaluation ¢s Deemed
Cost

PFRS 3, Business Combinafions {2008), and PAS 40,
investment Property - Acquisition of Investment
properties - asset acquisition or business combination?

PFRS 3.2 - Application of the Pooling of Interests Method
for Business Combinations of Enfities Under Common
Control in Consofidated Financial Statements

Cost of a New Building Constructed on the Site of ¢
Previous Building

Applicability of SMEIG final Q&As on the Application of
IFRS for SMEs 1o Philippine SMEs

Conforming Changes o PIC Q&As - Cycle 2013




PIC Q&A | PAS 17 - Accounting for Employee Benefits under ¢ v
2013-03 Defined Contribution Plon subject to Requirements of

(Revised) |Republic Act (RA] 7641, The Philippine Refirement Low

PIC Q&A Conforming Changes fo PIC Q&As - Cycle 2015 | v
2015-01

PIC QA Conforming Changes 1o PIC Q&As - Cycle 2016 v

2014-01

PIC Q&A PAS 32 and PAS 38 - Accounting Treatment of Club v
2016-02 Shares Held by an Entfity

PIC QaA Application of PFRS 15 “Revenue from Confrocis with v
12016-04 Customers" on Sate of Residential Properties under Pre-

| Completion Contracts

legend:

Adopled - means o particular stondard or inferpretation is relevant to the operations of the enfily feven i it hos no effect or no
matenial effect on the financial stotements), for which there may be a relafed particular occounting policy made in the financial
statements andj/or there are curent transoctions the amownts or balances of which are disclosed on the face or in the notes of the
financial stotements.

Not Adopted - means o particufor standard or interpretation is effective but the entity did not adopt it due to either of these two
reasons: [) The enfity has deviated or departed from the requirements of such standard or interpratation; of 2] The standard provides
for an option to eary adopf it but the enfity decided otherwiso.

Not Applicable - meons ihe stondard or inferprefation is not relevont ot ol to the operations of the enhly,



